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Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
» Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Cipy
Polyurethanes Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31% March, 2022 and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 313 March,
2022, and its Profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

» Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with standards on auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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» Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone IND AS financial statements of the current period.
Those matters were addressed in context of our audit of the standalone IND AS financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

» Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 54 to the financial results, which describes the management’s
estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 and its
second and third wave. The management believes that no adjustments are required in the
financial statements for the current financial year. However, in view of the various preventive
measures taken (such as complete lock-down restrictions by the Government of India, travel
restrictions etc.) and highly uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the
impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve
which is fully described and which is self-explanatory in above note. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

» Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
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to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

The Board.of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

» Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

» Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on matters specified in paragraphs 3 & 4 of the
Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, to the extent
applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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d)

g)

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant rules issued there under;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure- “B”. Our report expresses an unqualified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

1. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Standalone Ind AS financial statements- Refer note no. 40 to the
Ind AS financial statements.

2. The Company did not have any Long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

3. The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

4. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; '
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(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material mis-statement. :

The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year under report.
The requirement to the use of accounting software for maintaining Company’s
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
is deferred to financial years commencing on or after April 1, 2023. Therefore
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
not applicable for financial year ended on March 31, 2022.

For D.R. Barve & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 122260W

CA. Shireesh N Agte

(Partner)

Membership No.044641
UDIN: 22044641 AHUIVLS8043

Place: Pune

Date: 25% April, 2022
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Annexure “A” to Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited

>

b)

d)

Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and

Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date, we report that:

A) The company is generally maintaining proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

B) The company is generally maintaining proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has undertaken
regular program of physical verification of all its property, plant and equipment during the
year under report at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations
given to us, discrepancies observed, if any, on physical verification have been properly
dealt with in the books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that, the title deeds,
of all the immovable properties of land and buildings are held in the name of the Company
as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land and building that
have been taken on lease and disclosed as Right of Use of assets in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, the lease agreements are executed in the name of the Company.

Since the company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use of assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, our comments on “whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, the amount of change of
10% or more, in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant
and Equipment or intangible assets” are not required.
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iii)

€) According to the information and explanations given to us, no any proceedings have been

initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder,
Therefore, our comments on “whether the company has appropriately disclosed the details
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder in its financial statements™ are not required.

(a) As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable

intervals by the management and on the basis of representations received from the
management we are of the opinion that, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the management is appropriate. Further, no any discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed. The other discrepancies have been
properly dealt with in the books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been

sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, during any point
of time of the year. Therefore, our comments on “whether the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company” are not required.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any
investments in, provided any guarantee to or security to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties.

Further the company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships.

Also the company has not granted any secured loans or advances in the nature of loans
whether secured and unsecured to other parties.

Therefore, our comments in respect of above as contained in sub-clauses (a) to (f) of
clause (iii) are not required.

“—
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However, the company has granted unsecured loans to other parties.

a) An aggregate amount of unsecured loans of Rs. 7.53 Lakhs was paid to other parties.
The balance outstanding at the balance sheet in respect of above unsecured loans to other
parties was Rs. 9.40 Lakhs.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the

c)

d)

grant of unsecured loans made to other parties are not prejudicial to the company’s interest.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the schedule of repayment of
principal of unsecured loans made to other parties and payment of interest thereon is regular,
as stipulated.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no any amount is overdue in
respect of unsecured loans made to other parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no any unsecured loan made to
other parties has been renewed or extended or fresh loans has been granted to settle the over
dues of existing loans given to the same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying
any terms or period of repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not granted any
loan, made any investments, or provided any guarantee or security. Hence, our comments for
reporting on compliance of provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not required.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, our comments for
compliance of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or provisions of Sections 73 to
76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 or any rules made there
under are not required.
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The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014 as amended, prescribed by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the specified accounts &
records have been made & maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination
of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

The company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues to the appropriate authorities during the year.

There are no any arrears of outstanding statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no any statutory dues as
referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
Therefore, our comments on the amounts involved and the forum where dispute is pending
are not required.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no any transactions
which were not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).
Therefore, our comments on “whether the previously unrecorded income has been properly
recorded in the books of account during the year” are not required.

(a)  Based on our audit procedures and on the basis of information and explanations given
to us, the company has not taken any loan from Banks or financial institution or other lender,
our comments on defaults made by the company in repayment of loans or other borrowings
and in payment of interest thereon to any lender, period and amount of default are not
required.
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(b) Since the company has not taken any loan from Banks or financial institution or other
lender, our comments on “whether the company is a declared willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lender” are not required.

(c) Since the éompany has not taken any loan from Banks or financial institution or other
lender, our comments on “whether term loans were applied for the purpose for which the
loans were obtained” are not required.

(d) On the basis of our audit procedures, we are of the opinion that, the short-term funds
have not been utilized for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have
any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Therefore our comments on “whether the
company has taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, details thereof along with
nature of transactions and amount involved” are not required.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company does not have
any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Therefore our comments on, “whether the
company has raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, details thereof, default in repayment
of such loans” are not required.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on records of the

company,

(a) The company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, our comments on “whether
any moneys raised by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) were applied for the purposes for which those are raised” are not required.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Therefore, our comments on “whether the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of
the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used
for the purposes for which the funds were raised” are not required.
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(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we report that neither material fraud by the company nor any
fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.
Therefore our comments on the nature of fraud and the amount involved are not
required.

(b) We have not filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government as neither material fraud by the company nor any
fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no any whistle-blower

complaints have been received by the company during the year. Therefore our comments
under this clause are not required.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
is not a Nidhi company hence our comments regarding compliance of Nidhi Rules, 2014
regarding,

(a) whether the Nidhi Company has complied with the Net Owned Funds to Deposits in the
ratio of 1: 20 to meet out the liability;

(b) whether the Nidhi Company is maintaining ten per cent unencumbered term deposits as
specified in the Nidhi Rules, 2014 to meet out the liability;

(c) whether there has been any default in payment of interest on deposits or repayment
thereof for any period and if so, the details thereof;

are not required.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given to us,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in Standalone Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable Indian
accounting standards,

“
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Xiv) In our opinion and based on our examination, the provisions of section 138 of the
Companies Act, 2013 mandating internal audit system are not applicable to the company.
Therefore, our comments on:

(a) Whether the company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business;

(b) Whether the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered
by the statutory auditor;

are not required.

XV) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into
any non-cash ftransactions with directors or persons connected with him. Hence, our
comments regarding compliance of Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 are not required.

xvi)
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, since the company is not
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(2 of 1934), our comments regarding the registration of the company under the said act
are not required.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining
a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. ‘

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of written
representations from the management of the company, since the company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India, our comments on, “whether the company continues to fulfil the criteria of a
CIC, and in case the company is an exempted or unregistered CIC, whether it
continues to fulfil such criteria” are not required.

e e e e e e e——ee ey
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(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of written
representations from the management of the company, the Group does not have any
CIC as part of the Group. Therefore, our reporting on the number of CICs as part of
the Group is not required.

Since company has not incurred any Cash losses in the financial year under report and in the
immediately preceding financial year, our reporting on the amount of cash losses for the
respective years is not required.

Since there has been no any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year under report,
our comments on “whether we have taken into consideration the issues, objections or
concerns raised by the outgoing auditors” are not required.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date.

(a) Since, no any unspent amount on corporate social responsibility is outstanding at the end
of the year under report, our comments on “whether, in respect of other than ongoing projects,
the company has transferred unspent amount to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance
with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act” are not required.

(b) Since, no any unspent amount on corporate social responsibility is outstanding at the end
of the year under report, our comments on “whether any amount remaining unspent under
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, has

e s s————-——— e . e . 0 e . e e oo
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been transferred to special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of
section 135 of the said Act” are not required.

Since we are auditors of subsidiary company, our comments on “whether there have been any
qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial
statements, the details of the companies and the paragraph numbers of the CARO report
containing the qualifications or adverse remarks” are not required.

For D.R. Barve & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 122260W

CA. Shireesh N. Agte
(Partner)

Membership No.044641
UDIN: 22044641 AHUIVLS8043
Place: Pune

Date: 25" April, 2022
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Cipy
Polyurethanes Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls

and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

“
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Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

Ind AS financial statements.
“
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the pessibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31" March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For D.R.Barve & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 122260W

BT

CA. Shireesh N. Agte
(Partner)

Membership No.044641
UDIN: 22044641 AHUTVL8043
Place: Pune

Date: 25 April, 2022
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Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

(Amount in Lakhs.)

As at As at
Particulars Note No
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
ASSETS
1 Non Current Assets
(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 4 2,460.98 1,877.42
(b)  Intangible Assets 4a 75.05 60.52
(c)  Right of use of assets 4b 79.46 41.76
(d)  Capital Work-In-Progress 4 - 560.32
(e) Goodwill - -
(f) Other Intangible Assets & &
(g) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 13 -
(i) Loans 6 3.13 3.62
(iii) Other Financial Assets 8 71.28 66.26
(h)  Other Non-current Assets 15 46.63 28.25
(i) Deferred Tax Assets (net) 17 216.09 322.58
Total Non-Current Assets 2,952.61 2,960.72
2 Current Assets
(a)  Inventories 12 2,406.81 2,278.49
(b}  Financial Assets
(i) Investments 13 2,300.22 399.98
(i) Trade Receivables 5 2,727.64 4,108.90
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 313.37 524.82
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 11 5.04 323.77
{v}' Loans 7 9.54 14.78
(vi) Other Financial Assets 9 123.01 135.68
(c)  Current Tax Assets (net) 14 136.43 162.67
(d)  Other Current Assets 16 81.31 291.74
(e}  Non Current Asset held for Sale 18 - -
Total Current Assets 8,103.38 8,240.83
TOTAL ASSETS . TOTAL 11,055.99 11,201.55
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
3  EQUITY
(a)  Equity Share Capital 19 94.17 94.17
(b)  Other Equity 20 8,199.19 7,384.19
Total Equity 8,293.36 7,478 35
LIABILITIES
4 Non-Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings - -
(i) Trade payables - -
(iii) Lease Liabilities 21 32.68 -
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities - =
(b)  Provisions 26 96.63 117.60
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) - -
(d)  Other Non Current Liabilities .
Total Non-Current Liabilities 129.31 117.60




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1954PTC083328

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022

(Amount in Lakhs.)

As at As at
Particulars Note No
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
5 Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings (0.00) -
(i) Trade payables 23
- Outstanding dues of Micro & Small
Enterprises 110.51 108.61
- Outstanding dues of Creditors
other than Micro & Small Enterprises 1,722.79 2,749.85
(iii) Lease Liabilities 22 9.86 -
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 24 577.48 493.71
(b)  Other Current Liabilities 27 120.20 214.88
(c)  Provisions 25 92.48 38.55
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (net) 28 - -
Total Current Liabilities 2,633.32 3,605.60
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,762.64 3,723.20
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 11,055.99 11,201.55
See accompanying notes to Financial statements 40-62

As per our attached report of even date
For D. R. Barve & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 122260W

CA. Shireesh N. Agte-
'Partner

Membership No.: 44641
Place: Pune

Date: 25th April, 2022

For and On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors
Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited

it s

S

Dr. Subash Cipy  Sanjay Bahadur
Director Director
DIN : 00608724 DIN : 00032590

v st \ X

Md Yasrab Bashar Hardeep Singh
HOD-F&A CEO




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC0B3328

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31.03.2022

{Amount in Lakhs.)

) For the year ended Far the year ended
Partculars Norein 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 29 12,684.10 8,968.22
Other Income 30 64.93 42.41
Total Income 12,749.03 9,010.63
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 31 8,758.88 5,816.72
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods 32 34.97 69.59
Employee Benefits Expense 33 1,515.27 1,450.46
Finance Costs 34 5.02 16.98
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 35 160.83 138.12
Direct Manpower and Site Expenses 36 329.65 305.29
Other Expenses 37 808.97 1,061.15
Total Expenses 11,613.60 8,958.31
Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax 1,135.43 52.32
Exceptional Items 38 (1.45) -
Profit before Tax 1,133.98 52.32
Tax Expense
Current Tax 205.31 113.54
Deferred Tax 108.29 (91.64)
Net Tax expense 313.60 21.90
Profit for the year 820.38 30.42
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 39 (7.18) (23.87)

Income tax relating to items that will not be 1.81 6.01
reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive Income/(Loss) (5.37) (17.86)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 815.00 12.56
See accompanying notes to Financial statements 40-62
For and On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors

As per our attached report of even date Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
For D. R. Barve & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 122260W

oS \/"U\,-’\a"\r'vf

e
—

CA. Shireesh N. Agte
Partner
Membership No.: 44641
Place: Pune
Date: 25th April, 2022

Dr. Subash Cipy
Director
DIN : 00608724

Sanjay Bahadur
Director
DIN : 00032530

oot st \D\"

Md Yasrab Bashar Hardeep Si‘ngh
HOD-F&A CEO




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1954PTCO83328

Statement of Cash Flow

For the Year ended March 31, 2022

( Amount in Lakhs Rs.)

Date: 25th April, 2022

Particulars For the Year ended Mar 31, 2022 For the Year ended March 21, 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,133.98 52.32
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense 160.83 138.12
Provision for employee benefits (7.18) (23.87)
Interest income {6.17) (42.11)
Allowance for Doubtful Debts (296.67) 357.40
Finance costs 5.02 16.98
Profit on disposal of Property plant and Equipment 1.45 =
{142.71) 446.52
Operating profit before working capital changes 991.27 498.84
Changes in working capital:
a.(Increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventaories (128.32) (629.78)
Trade receivables 1,697.53 120.88
Loans - Non Current 0.49 3.41
Loans - Current 5.24 (6.58)
Other financial assets - Non Current {5.02) 86.24
Other financial assets - Current {6.93) (99.84)
Other Non current assets (18.37) 84.78
Other Current Assets 210.44 (148.35)
1,755.05 (589.26)
b.Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables (1,025.18) 556.38
Other Financial liabilities - Current 83.77 {116.84)
Other Current Liabilities (94.68) 85.70
Provisions - Non Current {20.97) 48.62
Provisions - Current 53.93 9.58
(1,003.10) 583.44
Cash generated from operations 1,743.21 493.02
Tax paid {179.07) (173.83)
Net cash used in operating activities {A) 1,564.14 319.19
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Payments for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments (238.18) (239.44)
Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipments 0.43 0.00
Interest received 6.17 42.11
Investrments in Mutual Funds {1,900.24) (393,98)
(2,131.83} {597.30)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (2,131.83} (597.30)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Net Proceeds from issue of equity share capital -
Bank Balance other than C & CE 318.73 295.78
Net Proceeds from Long term bnrrowfngs - -
Net Proceeds fram'short-term horrowings (0.00) -
Lease Liabilities 42,54 (5.20)
Finance costs (5.02) {16.98)
356.24 272.60
Net cash generated from financing activities {C) 356.24 272.60
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (211.44) (5.51)
{A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 524.81 530.32
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 313.37 524.81
As per our attached report of even date For and On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors
For D. R. Barve & Associates Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 122260W
NAANBA W
—
— =
L
CA. Shireesh N. Agte Dr. Subash Cipy  Sanjay Bahadur
Partner Director Director
Membership No.: 44641 DIN : 00608724  DIN : 00032590
Place: Pune

\ a8 bosos \C)\‘\W

"‘masrah Bashar

Hardeep s|ng!}

HOD-F&A CEO
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CIPY POLYURETHANES PRIVATE LIMITED
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes forming part of the financial statements

1
2
2.1
2.2
2:3
2.3.1

Corporate information
Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited is a Private limited company located in India and

incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on November 29, 1994. The company is engaged in
Manufacturing of Polyurethane paints, varnishes and lacquers and execution of the projects in
connection with application of the same.

The address of registered office and Principal place of business of the company is T-127, MIDC
Bhosari Industrial Area, Bhosari, Pune - 411026.

Pidilite Industries Limited, along with its 100% subsidiary company viz Fevicol Company Limited
acquired 70% shares of the company on 08th February, 2018. Accordingly, the Company had
become subsidiary of Pidilite Industries Limited from the above date.

Now, Pidilite Industries Limited has further acquired remaining 30% shares of the company on
22" April, 2021. Thus, now the Company has become wholly owned subsidiary of Pidilite
Industries Limited from 22nd April, 2021.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’)
read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs, except otherwise indicated.

Research and development expenses
Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to respective heads in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which it is incurred.

Property, Plant & Equipment utilised for research and development are capitalised and depreciated
in accordance with the policies stated for Property, Plant & Equipment .

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. :

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment, excluding other taxes or duties collected on
behalf of the government.

Sale of Goods / Services

Revenue from sale of goods/services is recognized upon transfer of significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the goods to the customer which generally coincides with dispatch of goods to
customer. Sales exclude G.S.T. It is measured at fair value of consideration received or receivable,
net of returns, rebates and discounts.




CIPY POLYURETHANES PRIVATE LIMITED
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes forming part of the financial statements

2,3.2

2.4

2.4.1

2.4.2

2.5

2.6

2.6.1

Interest income

Interest from a financial asset is recognised on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding using the effective interest method, provided it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the interest will flow to the Company and the amount of interest can be measured

reliably.
The Company’s policy for recognition of revenue (rental income) from operating leases is

described in note 2.4.1

Leasing

At the inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a
lease. Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Company as Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight- line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increase, such increases are
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.

Company as Lessee
Payments made under operating leases are recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases are
recognised in the year in which such benefits accrue.

Foreign Currencies

The fuctional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items (including financial assets and liabilities) denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Gains or losses arising from these
translations are recoanised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.The
Company’s current tax is calculated using applicable tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961 and other tax laws, as applicable,




CIPY POLYURETHANES PRIVATE LIMITED
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes forming part of the financial statements

2.6.2

2.6.3

25/
2.l

Deferred Tax )

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and Deferred Tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment acquired separately
Buildings, plant and machinery, vehicles, furniture and office equipments are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is determined as
the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the statement of profit & loss. -




CIPY POLYURETHANES PRIVATE LIMITED
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026

Notes

forming part of the financial statements

2.7.2

2.8

2.9

2.10

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method as per the useful life
prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Type of Assets Useful Life in Years
Buildings 30
Plant & Machinery 15
Vehicles 8
Furnture & Fixtures 10
Office Equipment 5

Impairment of Tangible Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

If the recoverable amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life.
The company uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of an intangible asset will not
exceed Five vears from the date when the asset is available for use.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories is determined on Weighted Average basis. Cost for this purpose includes cost of
direct material, direct labour and appropriate share of overheads. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of completion
and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Obsolete, defective, unserviceable and slow / non-moving stocks are duly provided for and valued
at net realisable value.




CIPY POLYURETHANES PRIVATE LIMITED
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes forming part of the financial statements

2.11

2.2,

2121

2,122

2.12.3

Provisions (other than Employee Benefits)

A provision is recognised when as a result of past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be reliably estimated, and, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are determined based on the best estimate required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect

the current best estimates.
Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Contingent Assets are not recognised but disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements,
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

At initial recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value,
except for trade receivables and payables which are measured at their transaction price.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or

Subsequent measurement of Financial Assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt instruments that meet conditions based on purpose of holding assets and contractual terms
of instrument are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
"Other income” line item.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company recognises loss allowance using expected credit loss model for financial assets which

are not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are weighted average
of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at original
effective rate of interest.

For Trade receivables, the Company measures loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. The Company computes expected credit loss allowance based on a
provision matrix prepared on the basis of agewise analysis prepared.
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2.12.4

12.5

2.12.6

2.13

- 2.14

2.14.1

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from

Financial Liabilities & Equity Instruments

Classification of debt or equity

Debt or equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
financial liability and equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities
All financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments) are measured at amortised cost

using effective interest method at the end of reporting periods.
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

the financial asset expire, or when the Company transfers the contractual rights to receive the
cash flows of the financial asset in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred, or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

The Company derecognises a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) when the contractual
obliaation is discharaed. cancelled or exbires.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these contracts are measured at fair value and changes are
recognised in profit or loss.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / loss before extraordinary
items and tax for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments. Cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank, cash
in hand and short- term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, as reduced by
bank overdrafts.

Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme, Gratuity Fund,
Compensated Absences and Anniversary Awards.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme are
considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of
contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.
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2.14.2

2.14.3

Defined Benefit Plans

For Defined Benefit Plans in the form of Gratuity Fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance
sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets
(excluding net interest) is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in Other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised immediately for both vested and the
non-vested portion. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets.
Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited taking into account the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

Short Term and Other Long Term Employee Benefits ‘

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits, employee benefits are measured
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Critical Accounting Judgements and key sources of Estimation Uncertainty.

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management, to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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3.1 Key accounting judgements, assumptions and estimates

311

3.1:2

3.1.3

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below:

Income taxes

Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the calculation of advance
tax and deferred tax, and determining provision for income taxes and uncertain tax positions
(disclosed in Note 45).

Property, Plant and Equipment

The useful lives and residual values of Company’s assets are determined by the management at
the time the asset is acquired. These estimates are reviewed annually by the management. The
lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events,
which may impact their life, such as changes in technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production or from a change in market demand of the product or
service output of the asset.

Employee related provisions

The costs of long term and short term employee benefits are estimated using assumptions by the
management. These assumptions include rate of increase in compensation levels, discount rates,
expected rate of return on assets and attrition rates.
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Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited

T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026

CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

4a Intangible Assets (Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars Software O.t i u:-.‘r Total
Building

Gross Block

Balance as at 1st April 2020 ~ 2 =
Additions 60.55 60.55
Disposals/ Adjustments = = -

Balance as at 31°'March 2021 60.55 - 60.55
Additions/ Transfers 27.33 27.33
Disposals/ Adjustments " a -

Balance as at 31° March 2022 87.88 - 87.88

Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1st April 2020 = = -
Eliminated on disposal of assets = = -
Adjustments/ Transfers &4

Depreciation expense 0.03 0.03

Balance as at 31° March 2021 0.03 - 0.03
Eliminated on disposal of assets S i o
Adjustments/ Transfers =

Depréciation expense 12.80 12.80

Balance as at 31 March 2022 12.83 - 12.83

Net Block

Balance as at 1st April 2020 = - =
Additions / Revaluation 60.55 = 60.55
Disposals/ Adjustments = 3 =
Depreciation expense 0.03 - 0.03
Depreciation Eliminated on disposal - - -

Balance as at 31°' March 2021 60.52 -  60.52
Additions 27.33 - ~ 27.33
Disposals/ Adjustments = - =
Depreciation expense 12.80 & 12.80

Depreciation Eliminated on disposal =

Balance as at 31°*March 2022 75.05 - 75.05
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T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026

CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

4b Right of use of assets (Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars Leasehold Land O_thf:r Total
Building

Gross Block

Balance as at 1st April 2020 54.93 17.61 72.53
Additions =
Disposals/ Adjustments -

Balance as at 31°'March 2021 54.93 17.61 72.53
Additions/ Transfers - 50.84 50.84
Disposals/ Adjustments = 17.61 17.61

Balance as at 31 March 2022 54.93 50.84 105.77

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance as at 1st April 2020 12.68 11.74 24.41,
Eliminated on disposal of assets .
Adjustments/ Transfers =

Depreciation expense 0.49 5.87 6.36
Balance as at 31 March 2021 13.16 17.61 30.77
Eliminated on disposal of assets i - % &
Adjustments/ Transfers - 157,61 17.61
Depreciation expense 0.49 12.66 13.15
Balance as at 31°' March 2022 13.65 12.66 26.31
Net Block )
Balance as at 1st April 2020 42.25 5.87 48.12

Additions / Revaluation - _ =
Disposals/ Adjustments 2 A =

Depreciation expense 0.49 5.87 6.36
Depreciation Eliminated on disposal - = =
Balance as at 315 March 2021 41,76 (0.00) 41.76
Additions : 50.84 50.84

Disposals/ Adjustments - - -
Depreciation expense 0.49 12.66 13.15

Depreciation Eliminated on disposal &

Balance as at 31 March 2022 41.28 38.18 79.46




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

4 Property, Plant and Equipment
Gross Block

Freehold Land

Buildings

Plant and Equipment
'~ Plant and Machinery
- Vehicles
- Furniture and Fixtures
- Office Equipment

Sub Total

Graoss Block Total

Less Depreciation
Freehald Land
Buildings
Plant and Equipment

- Plant and Machinery
- Vehicles
- Furniture and Fixtures
" Office Equipment

Sub Total

Depreciation Total

Net Block

Capital Work-In-Progress

4a Intangible Assets
Gross Block
Software

Less Depreciation
Software

Net Block

ab Right of use of assets

Gross Block
Leasehald Land
Other Building
Gross Block Total

Less Depreciation
Leasehold Land
Other Building
Depreciation Total

Net Block

564.47 564.47
1,177.23 571.72
1,234.17 1,146.81

159.24 159.24

153.91 136.20

200.26 214.65
1,747.58 1,656.91
3,489.29 2,793.10

184.12 165.25

451.66 376.33

127.02 114.61

91.27 82.00

174.24 177.48

844.19 750.43
1,028.31 915.68
2,460.98 1,877.42

= 560.32
87.88 60.55
12.83 0.03
75.05 60.52
54.93 54.93
49.09 17.61

104.02 72,53

13.65 13.16
10.91 17.61
24.56 30.77
79.46 41.76




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328
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5 Trade Receivables
(Also Refer Note No. 59)

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Unsecured, considered doubtful

- Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk
- Trade Receivables- credit Impaired

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables

Sub Total

2,727.64 4,108.90

52.71 414.16
1,161.53 1,116.35
1,214.24 1,530.51
3,941.87 5,639.40
1,214.24 1,530.51
2,727.64 4,108.90

6 Loans - Non Current

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Loans and Advances to Employees & Others 3.13 3.62
3.13 3.62
7 loans - Current
{Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars e bk
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Loans and Advances to Employees & Others 9.54 14.78
. 9.54 14.78
8  Other Financial Assets - Non-Current
(Also refer Note No. 60) {Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars - —
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Security Deposit 55.94 63.69
Retention Money Receivable
Unsecured, Considered good 15.34 2.57
Unsecured, Considered doubtful
-Retention Money Receivable which have significant increase in Credit Risk -
-Retention Money Receivable- Credit Impaired - -
Sub Total 5 "
15.34 2.57
Less: provision for doubtful balances - e
15.34 2.57
TOTAL 71.28 66.26
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Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

9  Other Financial Assets - Current
(Alsa refer Note No. 60) (Amount in Lakhs.)
As at As at
Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Security deposit
Unsecured, Considered good - -
Considered doubtful -
Less: provision for doubtful balances < =
Others (Interest Receivable) 0.29 8.73
Foreign Currency Forward Contract Assets L
Retention Money Receivable
Unsecured, Considered good 122.72 126.96
Unsecured, Considered doubtful
-Retention Meney Receivable which have significant increase in Credit Risk 21.07 6.96
-Retention Maney Receivable- Credit Impaired 106.99 101.49
Sub Total 128.06 108.45
250.77 23541
Less: provision for doubtful balances 128.06 108.45
122.72 126.96
TOTAL 123.01 135.68
10 Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars At A at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 0.27 0.07
Cheques on Hand z ¥
Balance with banks
In Current Account 312.60 221.11
In EEFC Account 2 ®
In Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity of 3 months or less Gl $03:65
TOTAL 313.37 524.82
Cash and Cash Equivalents (As above) 313.37 524.82
Cash Credit Accounts & 7
Cash and Cash Equivalents (As per Cash Flow Statements) 313.37 524.82
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11 Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents above

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Balance with banks
In Current Account (balances with restriction on repatriation)
Other Bank Balance
In Fixed Deposit Accounts with ariginal maturity of more than 12

4.97 -
months
In Fixed Deposit Accounts with original maturity for more than 3
- 323.70
months but less than 12 months
Earmarked Account
Dividend Payment Bank Account 0.07 0.07
TOTAL 5.04 323.77
12 Inventories (At lower of cost and net realizable value)
(Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars G, Asat
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Raw Material and Packing Material 1,811.19 1,645.55
Worl-in-Progress 249.06 315.78
Finished Goods 346.55 314.80
Stores and Spares 0.01 2.36
TOTAL 2,406.81 2,278.49
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CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

13  Investments
(Also refer note no 62)

{Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2021 31st March 2021
Investment in Mutual Funds 2,300.22 399.98
- Market Value of above investments as on 31.03.2022 2,310.75 400.40
14 Current Tax Assets (net)
(Amount in Lakhs.)
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2022

31st March 2021

Advance Payment of Taxes (Net of Provisions) 136.43 162.67

TOTAL 136.43 162.67

15 Other Non-Current Assets
(Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars AERt Aet
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Capital Advances 46.63 28.25
Prepaid Expenses .
Balance with Government Authorities - 0.00
Provision for outstanding Advances -

TOTAL 46.63 28.25

16 Other Current Assets

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Export Benefits receivable
Unsecured, Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: provision for doubtful balances

Balances with Government Authorities
Unsecured, Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: provision for doubtful balances

Advances to vendors
Unsecured, Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: provision for doubtful balances

Others (Discount & Interest Receivable)

Prepaid Expenses
Provision for outstanding Advances

TOTAL

16.16 13.90
16.16 13.90
16.16 13.90
9.27 184.01
9.27 184,01
9.27 ig4.01
28.70 78.53
28.70 7853
28.70 78.53
15.67 15.29
11.51 -
81.31 291.74
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17 Deferred Tax Assets (net)

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars Asat A2t
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Assets 97.49 444.03
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabilities 118.60 (121.46)
TOTAL 216.09 322.58
18 Non Current Asset held for Sale

(Amount in Lakhs.)

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2022

31st March 2021

Non Current Asset held for Sale

TOTAL
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19 Equity Share Capital

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Siastitui As at As at
articulars
3ist March 2022 31st March 2021
horise ital :
1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each 100.00 100.00
(1,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each as at 31st March, 2022)
TOTAL 100.00 100.00
Issue bscribed and Paid up Capital :
94,166 Equity Shares of Rs, 100 each fully paid up 94.17 94.17
(94,166 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each fully paid up as at 31st March, 2022)
94.17 94.17

c.

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Number of Shares

Amount in Rs.

Balance at the beginning of the year 94,166 94,16,600
Shares issued during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 94,166 94,16,600

Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100

per share. Each holder

of eauitv shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Companv declares and pavs dividend in Indian

In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in the proportion of their shareholding.

The company has not declared any dividend during the year.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

Name of Shareholder
No. of Shares

% of Holding

No. of Shares

% of Holding

Dr. Subash Cipy - - 16,452 17.47%
Mr. Roshan Cipy - - 8,600 9.13%
Pidilite Industries Ltd* 94,166 100.00 65,917 70.00%

* includes shares held by wholly owned subsidiary company of Pidilite Industries Limited viz. Fevicol Company Limited

Now, Pidilite Industries Limited has further acquired remaining 30% shares of the company on 22nd April, 2021, Thus, how the Company has
become wholly owned subsidiary of Pidilite Industries Limited from 22nd April, 2021,

Shareholding of Promoters

31.03.2022

31.03.2021

Promoter name No. 'of Shares

%of total shares

No. of Shares

%of total

shares
Dr. Subash Cipy - - 16,452 17.47%
Pidilite Industries Ltd 94,166 100.00 65,917 70.00%

Kindly confirm above based on annual return filed by company.
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20  Other Equity

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Securities Premium 454.30 454.30
General Reserve 70.41 70.41
Retained Earnings 7,674.48 6,859.48
TOTAL 8,199.19 7,384.19
20.1 Securities Premium

(Amount in Lakhs.)

As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2022

31st March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 454.30 454.30
Less. Adjustment during the year - -
Closing balance 454.30 454.30

Note: Securities Premium is created when shares are issued at premium. The Company may issue fully paid-
up bonus shares to its members out of Securities Premium and company can use this Securities

Premium for buy back of shares.

20.2 General Reserve

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars Agat Azt :

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 70.41 70.41
Add. Transferred from statement of i
Profit & Loss
Closing balance 70.41 70.41

19.3 Retained Earnings
(Amount in Lakhs.)
As at As at

Particulars

31st March 2022

31st March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,859.48 6,846.92
Add: Profit for the year 820.38 30.42
Less: Payment of Dividend ., -
Less: Payment of Dividend ) i
Distribution Tax
Add/ (Less): Other Comprehensive e o
Income/ (loss)for the year (5:37) ’
7,674.48 6,859.48

Closing balance
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21 Lease Liabilities - Non Current
{Amount in Lakhs.)

As at As at

Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Lease Liabilities for Right of Use of Assets 32.68 B
TOTAL 32.68 =
22  Lease Liabilities - Current
(Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars As L As
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Lease Liabhilities for Right of Use of Assets 9.86 -
TOTAL 9.86 =
Particulars L s
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Borrowing
Borrowing from Banks -0.00
TOTAL -0.00 =
23 Trade Payables
(Also refer Note No. 61) (Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars st A ak
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro .
enterprises and small enterprises 110.51 - 108.61
Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and
) 1,722.79 2,749.85
small enterprises
TOTAL 1,833.30 ] 2,858.46




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

24  Other Financial Liabilities - Current

{Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars et v
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts - -
Payable on Purchase of Fixed Assets 12.19 15.17
Liabilities for Expenses 449.07 377.83
Trade/Security Deposits Received 11.05 12.05
Employee Related Liabilities 94.82 85.11
Retention Money Payable 10.34 3.55
TOTAL 577.48 493.71
25  Provisions - Current
(Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars A& AL foal
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity = _
Compensated Absences 6.27 3.10
Provision for Warranty expenses 86.22 35.45
TOTAL 92.48 38.55
26  Provisions - Non Current
(Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars A3 et i :
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity 49.28 70.31
Compenisated Absences 47.35 47.29
TOTAL 96.63 117.60




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

27

Other Current Liabilities

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

Statutory remittances 62.24 45.99
Advance from customers 57.96 168.89

Lease Liahility -
TOTAL 120.20 214.88

28 Current Tax Liabilities (net)
(Amount in Lakhs.)
. As at As at
Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Provision for Tax (Net of Advance

Tax)
(Net of Advance Tax as at 31st

March, 2020)

TOTAL




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

29 Revenue From Operations

(Amount in Lakhs.)

. For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Revenue From Operations
Sale of Products

Finished Goods 12,157.48 8,590.67
Sale of Services

Job Work / Labour Charges 498.51 354.76

TOTAL (A) 12,655.99 8,945.43

Other Operating Revenue

Freight Charges & Transit Insurance 21.15 16.42

Testing Charges 4,71 1.67

Export Incentives 2.26 4.70

TOTAL (B) 28.11 22.79
Revenue from operations (A+B) 12,684.10 8,968.22
30 Other Income
(Amount in Lakhs.)
For th
Wariitare or the year ended Far the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Interest on:

Bank Deposit (at amortised cost) 6.06 42.04

Others 0.11 0.06
Other Non-Operating Income:

Net Gain on foreign currency transaction and translation 23.14 (2.12)

Liabilities no longer required written back 4.66 243

Rental income -

Miscellaneous Incame 11.90 -

Proft on Sale of Investment 19.07

TOTAL 64.93 42.41




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

31 Cost of Materials Consumed

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2022

For the year ended
31st March 2021

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add : Purchases

Less : Inventory at the end of the year

TOTAL

1,645.55 948.54
8,924.52 6,613.73
10,570.07 7,562.27
1,811.19 1,645.55
8,758.88 5,916.72

32 Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade
(Amount in Lakhs.)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Inventories at end of the year
Finished Goods 346.55 314.80
Work-in-Progress 249.06 315.78
(A) 595.62 630.58
Inventories at beginning of the year
Finished Goods / Stock-in-Trade 314.80 300.62
Work-in-Progress 315,78 399.55
(B) 630.58 700.17
(B)-{A) 34.97 69.59
Increase / (Decrease) of Excise Duty on inventory of FG - 3
TOTAL 34.97 69.59
33 Employee Benefits Expense
(Amount in Lakhs.)
pasiieatars For the year ended Far the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Salaries and Wages 1,393.09 1,325.99
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 71.09 78.29
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 21.62 15.05
Staff Welfare Expenses 29.47 31.13
TOTAL 1,515.27 1,450.46




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

34 Finance Costs

{Amount in Lakhs.)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Interest expense on:
Borrowings 0.00 -
Interest on others /Lease Liability 5.02 16.98
TOTAL 5.02 16.98
35 Depreciation and Amortization Expense
(Amount in Lakhs.)
particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 134.88 132.22
Amortization of Other Intangible Assets 12.80 0.03
Amortization on ROU 13,15 5.87
TOTAL 160.83 138.12
36 Direct Manpower and Site Expenses
(Amount in Lakhs.)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Labour Charges 329.65 305.29
Factory Expenses z %
TOTAL 329.65 305.29




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

37 Other Expenses

(Amount in Lakhs.)

particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Consumption of Stores & Spares 51.88 34.54
Carriage 1.41 6.41
Clearing, Forwarding and Octroi Duty 50.16 78.61
Power and Fuel 57.34 42.35
Water Charges 1.93 1.73
Variable Manufacturing Cost 162.72 163.65
Rent . 0.06 7.02
Repairs Machinery 10.09 20.68
Fixed Manufacturing Cost 10.15 27.70
Director fees 6.20 5.60
Rates and Taxes 28.02 42.00
Insurance 18.65 10.73
Repairs Others 32.21 9.45
Advertisement Publicity & Business Pramotion Exp. 55.57 25.36
Legal, Professional and Consultancy fees 186.37 223.11
Communication Expenses 22,04 11.09
Printing and Stationery 3.43 3.18
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 57.12 22.82
Bad Debts 278.12 6.33
Allowance for Doubtful Debts (296.67) 357.40
Sales commission 1:95 16.37
Payments to Auditor 10.40 7.00
Donations -
Carporate Social Responsibility Expenses 30.25 36.04
Miscellaneous expenses 202.45 93.33
Other Admin Cost 636.10 869.81
TOTAL 808.97 1,061.15




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
CIN : U24219PN1994PTC083328

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

38 Exceptional ltems (net)

(Amount in Lakhs.)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Profit / (Loss) on Sale of Assets {1.45) -
TOTAL (1.45) -
39 Other Comprehensive Income
(Amount in Lakhs.)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Actuarial Gains/losses (7.18) (23.87)
Tax effect on Other Comprehensive Income 1.81 6.01
TOTAL (5.37) (17.86)




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

40 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
(Amount in Lakhs.)
Sr. 2 As at As at
No,: Torsictiars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
A) Contingent liabilities not provided for
1 Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts comprise of:
- Income tax demand against the Company not provided for and
relating to issues of deduction and allowances in respect of which the -
Company is in appeal
- Excise duty claims disputed by the Company relating to issues of
bt 189.44
classifications
- Local Body tax claims disputed by the Company relating to FY 13- 1.290.67
14, 14-15 & 15-16 Z '
2 Guarantees given by Banks in favour of customers 107.71 204.69
Total 107.71 1,684.80
B) Commitments
(a) Estimated amount of contracts, net of advances, remaining to be
executed for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment and not 35.20 92.77
provided for.
Total 35.20 92.77
41 Segment information
The Company is primarily engaged in a single segment i.e. business of manufacturing of paints, varnishes, etc. and
accordingly, this is the only reportable segment. The entire operation is governed by the same set of risk and returns
and, hence, the same has been considered as representing a single primary segment. The same treatment is in
accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 108 - 'Operating Segment Reporting', notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
42 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The following reflects the Profit and Share data used in the Basic and Diluted EPS computations:

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2022

For the year ended
31st March 2021

Basic:

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS
Par value per share (Rs.)

Earning per share (Basic) (Rs.)

Diluted:

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS
Par value per share (Rs.)

Earning per share (Diluted) (Rs.)

820.38
94,166
100.00
871.20

820.38
94,166
100.00
871.20

30.42
94,166
100.00

32.30

30.42
94,166
100.00

32.30
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Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

45 Financial Instrument

1 Capital Management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.The capital structure of the Company consists of net debts and total equity of
the Company. The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

2 Categories of financial instruments
(Amount in Lakhs,)

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost

Investments 2,300.22 399.98
Trade Receivables 2,727.64 4,108.90
Cash and cash equivalents 313.37 524.82
Bank balance other than above 5.04 323.77
Loans 12.67 18.40
Other financial assets 194.29 201.95
Total Financial Assets 5,553.24 5,577.81

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost

Borrowings - -

Trade Payables 1,833.30 2,858.46
Other financial liabilities 577.48 493.71
Total Financial Liabilities 2,410.78 3,352.17

3 Financial risk management objectives
Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligation as they fall due. The
Company's financial liabilities as on March 31, 2022 is Rs. 2410.78 Lakhs. Significant portion of the Company's financial assets as on
March 31, 2022 is Rs. 5,553.24 Lakhs which comprise of cash and cash equivalents aggregating to Rs. 313.37 Lakhs

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The
Company has big reputed corporate as customer base due to which credit risk is very less. Significant portion of the Company's financial
assets as at 31st March 2022 comprise of trade receivable, retention money receivable and unbilled revenue which are held with
reputed and credit worthy reputed corporate customers.

4 Market risk
The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company enters

into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk of imports.

5 Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.
Exchange rate exposures are managed utilising forward foreign exchange contracts.
The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the

reporting period are as follows.

{Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars FC value in Foreign Currency FC value in INR
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Amounts recoverable in foreign currency on

account of the following:
UsbD 2.14 3.76 157.51 276.08

Amounts payable in foreign currency on

account of the following:
UsD 0.72 1.18 55.29 8§7.32

The Company is mainly exposed to the USD.
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Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

46 Taxes

Deferred Tax

{Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars

As at 31st March’

As at 31st March, 2021

2022
Deferred Tax Assets 363.73 444,02
Deferred Tax Liabilities (147.64) (121.45)
Total 216.09 322.57
2021-22

Deferred Tax Assets/(liabilities) in relation to:

Recognised in

Opening Balance Recognised:in Reofit L . Closing balance

or loss Comprehensive

Income

Property, Plant and Equipment (121.45) 26.18 (147.63)
Allowance for doubtful debts 412.49 74.67 337.82
Defined Benefit Obligation 30.38 6.29 (1.81) 25.90
Other Provisions 1.16 1.16 - -
Total 322.57 108.29 (1.81) 216.09
2020-21

Deferred Tax Assets/(liabilities) in relation to:

Recognised in

Opening Balance Recopnised in Frofit ather 2 Closing balance
or loss Comprehensive
__Income
Property, Plant and Equipment (118.29) 3.16 - (121.45)
Allowance for doubtful debts 322.54 (89.95) - 412.49
Defined Benefit Obligation 17.98 (6.39) (6.01) 30.38
Other Provisions 2.70 1.53 - 1.16
Total 224,92 (91.64) (6.01) 322.57

Income Taxes relating to continuing operations

Income Tax recognised in Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended
31ist March, 2022

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021

Current Tax

In respect of the year 205.31 113.54

In respect of prior years -
Total 205.31 113.54
Deferred Tax

In repsect of the current year 108.29 (91.64)
Total 108.29 (91.64)
Total Income Tax expense recognised in the

313.60 21.90

current year relating to continuing

operations




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026

Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

b The Income Tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows.

{Amount in Lakhs.)

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2022

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021

Profit Before Tax 1,126.80 28.45
Income Tax Rate (%) 25.168 25.168
Income Tax expense 2B3.59 7.16
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation - -
Effect .of. expenses thal? are not deductible in (65.47) 9.11
determining taxable profit

Effect of concessions(research & development, . )
other allowances and deductions)

Others 93.67 5.62
Total 311.79 21.89
Adjustments recognised in the current year in ) .
relation to the current tax of prior years

Income Tax expense recognised in profit or 311.79 21.89

loss (relating to continuing operations)

Income Tax recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended
31ist March, 2022

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021

Tax arising on income and expenses
recognised in OCI
Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Obligation

(1.81)

(6.01)

Total income tax recognised in other
Comprehensive Income

(1.81)

(6.01)




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

47 Disclosures required under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

(Amount in Lakhs.)

Sr. ; As at As at
TR et March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1 Principal amm{nt remaining unpaid to any SME supplier as at the end 110.51 108.61
of the accounting year
5 Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end B }
of the accounting year
3 The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment . [
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
4 |The amount of interest due and payable for the year 0.17
5 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of _ )
the accounting year
The amount of further interest due and payable even in the
6 |succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are - B
actually paid
Total 1i10.51 108.79
The above information regarding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basis of information collected with the Company. This has been relied upon by
the auditors.
48 Details of Payments to Auditor
(Amount in Lakhs.
Sr. . For the year ended | For the year ended
No, |F3rHcilare March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Payment to Auditor as
a |Auditor 6.50 775
b |for Taxation matters 1.75 1.25
¢ |for Company Law matters - -
d [for Other Services 2.15 -
e |for reimbursement of expenses -
Total 10.40 9.00




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

49 Operating Lease
a) Operating lease payment (minimum lease payments) has been recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss under
heading Rent under other expenses amounting to Rs. 12.92 Lakhs

b) General description of the leasing arrangement:
i) Leased Assets : Factory space
ii) Future lease rentals are determined on the basis of agreed terms.

i) At the expiry of the lease term, the Company has an option either to vacate the asset or extend the term by
giving notice in writing.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities. The lease is non-cancellable for
a period of 5 years and may be renewed for a further period based on mutual agreement of the parties.

Non cancellable operating lease commitments. (Amount in Lakhs.)

Future minimum lease payments

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

not later than one year

later than one year and not later than five years

later than five years

9.86
32.68

Provision for Warranty expense

Provision for Warranty expense relates to warranty provision made on the basis of expected future liability on
account of the warranty in respect of services rendered by the company till the end of the financial year and for
which warranty period is not yet over. The estimated cost of warranty is accrued at the time of sale.

The movement of provision for warranty is as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Balance as at Beginning of the year
-Non Current

-Current 35.45 26.50
: 35.45 26.50

Addition 53.22 8.95

Utilisation (2.45)

Reversal (withdrawn as no longer required) - -

Balance as at Closing of the year 86.22 35.45

Non Current -

Current 86.22 35.45

Total 86.22 35.45




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127, MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

51 Corporate Social Responsibility
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at
least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social
responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting
education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief
and rural development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were
primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII
of the Companies Act. 2013.

Sr. g For the year ended '|For the year ended
Particul
No. | o heulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(@) |Amount required to be spent by the company during the year, 30.25 36.04
(b) |Amount of expenditure incurred, 30.25 36.04
(c) |Shortfall at the end of the year, - -
(d) |Total of previous years shortfall, = -
(e) |Reason for shortfall, Not Applicable Not Applicable
Payment made to _T_fiimr?nt maﬁel ko
(7 |Nature of CSR activities, Triveni Kalyan|-" Ve Ayl
Foundation Foundation of Rs.
18.87 Lakhs
Payment made for
promotion of
education of Rs.
17.17 Lakhs
Irivent Kalyan Iriven Kalyan
Details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a Fou?dﬂttgnblste;] trust Fou:d;:ltlgnblst?-. L
(g) [trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure ;%Td:ﬁgeCOrT{paney E?Jrlld:r(:ge(:or:pa:y
| tA ti ; s ; S R
RE.PEN Flgyant Accelnting Staridard "Pidilite Industries "Pidilite Industries
Lt " Itd "
The movements in the provision, where a provision is made
(h) |with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual|Not Applicable Not Applicable
obligation during the year.




Cipy Polyurethanes Private Limited
T-127. MIDC, Bhosari, Pune - 411026
Notes attached to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

51

52

53

54

55

56

Events after reporting period
There were no significant events after the end of the reporting period which require any adjustment or disclosure in
the financial statement.

Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on at its meeting held on 25th April,

2022,

Figures for the corresponding previous period have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary, to make them
comparable with current year's figures. The figures for quarter ended 31st March, 2022 are balancing figures
between the audited figures of the full financial year and the reviewed year-to-date figures up to the third quarter
of the financial year.

Effect due to Coronavirus (COVID-19)

The outhreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India as well as its second wave is causing
significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. In many countries, businesses are being forced to cease
or limit their operations for a long or indefinite period of time. Measures taken to contain the spread of the virus,
including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-essential services have triggered
significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown.

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India as well as its second wave is significantly
impacting business operations of the companies, by way of interruption in production, supply chain disruption,
unavailability of personnel, closure / lock down of production facilities etc.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 and its
second wave in the preparation of these financial statements including the recoverability of Company’s assets such
as Trade receivable, Inventories, Loans, Advances and Other Current Assets.

In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions
because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial statements, used internal
and external sources of information including credit reports and related information and economic forecasts and
expects that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 and its second wave
on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Amalagamation with Holding Company

On September 06, 2021, the Board of Directors of the company have approved a Scheme of amalgamation
between the Company and Holding Company namely Pidilite Industries Limited (PIL), their respective shareholders
and creditors subject to obtaining requisite regulatory and other approvals.

On March 23, 2022, the National Company Law Tribunals ("NCLT”) at Mumbai has approved the proposed Scheme
of amalgamation between the Company and PIL. Pursuant to the NCLT Order, with effect from 1 April 2022 (“the
Appointed Date”) as defined in the Scheme, the Company shall stand amalgamated into PIL and its Undertaking
shall, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, be and
stand transferred to and vested in PIL, as a going concern without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or
thing so as to become, the undertaking of PIL by virtue of and in the manner provided in the Scheme. In view of
above, these financial statements have been prepared on a goina concern basis.

Registration/ satisfaction of charges with ROC
There are no any charges or satisfaction of charges yet to be registered with registrar of companies beyond

statutory period at the end of the financial year.




1B3 [BI2UBUILY JUBLIND Ul 53214d

T/ (67'8LZ T+ TL8YI'T) =

2/ (1890v'T + 6¥°'8L2°2) =

7/ (Aojuaau| uisop] + AJojuaau|
BuluadQ) =Ai0juanu| a8esany

oney Janouan] Alojuaau) g
|ewR3e N mey Jofew ul saBueyd o3 anp aseaudu| 09°€96'T S9'ZVET Aiojuanu| adesany
80'vT T0€ vLE =
TL9T6'S 88'85L'8 PIOS sp00g j0 3507
Z/(|lendes a1eys AInb3 auisop)
sissil T/ LT'v6 + LT'Y6) = 2/ (LTv6 + LT'v6) = + |eyde) aseys Anb3 Sujuadp)
|BIDUBUIY JUB.IND U) 53502 PRIUBMUN U] UOIINPalL = Spuny sispjoyaJleys adelaay I — 3
PUE 2NU3A3J Ul 95EAJU] 01 BNP SSBUISNY " i T ! |
3y} Jo AM|1ge3130.4 Ul 35B3U0U| 03 3NP S| 3SEIOU| 96'965'7 zE£0 108 i .
(440 B8E'0Z8 Xe_ J31y 1404
i A . - — uopesiuowy pue uonejaaidag + 1502
CT'8ET +86'9T + ZEES = €8'09T +Z0°S + L6'EET'T = a5UBULY + XB] 21043G 140Jd = VALIGS
Auedwoo au uj uymouiog ou s asay L } - (4eaA Buo uiyMm suBWAeday |edidulid oney afesano) 3apussigag| ¢
+ (uopesijeliden jo 3au) 350193u|
’ (vaLigd]
Lot V8’6621 uoneziuowy pue ‘uonenaldag
‘xe] “1saJa3u| alojag sdujuley
— S G e Aunb3 Jayio
6T VBE'L +LT'V6 = .H.mﬁmw,fh._"vmu +endes aleys Aynb3 = yuoman
Auedwod ay} ui Bumousog ou st asay) CEBLYL 95'g62's yuomiaN oney Alnb3-1qag r4
o = s3uimoulog
3w
uo pied uaaq os|e aney S101IPaL] ||V 'SB|GRAIIDY
09°S09°E 2E'EEIL sanl|iqer juaun)
ul Juawaaosdwi 03 pa| Jeah 3yl Bulnp uonlIs|joz - 67'Z 20°€ I
J3y3iH "jeaide) Bupyom Jo Juawadeuew
. Japaq o3 anp panosdiul onel JuaLINg £8°0v2'8 8E'E0T'S S1955Y 30BN
one *SY) Junow O11E] 'Sy) Junow
~1eak Suipaasaud ay3 03 pasedwon se sz mu_.”._a.t_n_ ey (sy) ¥ v ey ('su) 3 17
A | d )
i S e e TZ0Z'60°TE "3'A Z20TE0°TE T'A oney oney Jo auwey ‘N 15

(syyeT ur sy)

soney [eldueuld jo sisAjeuy /g

ZZOT ‘YoieW ISTE PIPUD J23A SY3 10) SIUBLLISILIS [BIDUBULY O} PSYDENE SSION

9Z0TT¥ - dund ‘Ilesoyg ‘DAIW ‘£ZT-1]
pallwi ajealld saueyjainijod AdiD




ZT00E'T JUIWIS3AU| JO 3507
pung [eNINpy Ul 3UOP JUIWISIAU] MBN - = 3 (3sa121u1/pUapinip) uawsaaul ue wmay| 1T
) JUSWISIAUI UO WIN3al JaN
Ayligen
89°¢ZE -0+ SEBLY'L = 60°9TZ -0 + 9E'E6Z'8 = X2| p34i9)aQ +302d |e30L + YHOM
12N 2|qi8ue] = padojdw3 |eaide)
. ! - ok 150D 20UBUl + XB| 310439
ujo.d u) aseasau| 03 anp aseasdu| 869T +TECS = T0'S+ LST0ST'T = 1j01d = Saxe g 153193U] 310)9 1jOId pakojdw3 jeyde) uo winlay 0T
8£'SST'L LTLLo's pafojdw3 |eades
L0'9SE'T %L6'0 %0T"vT
0E'69 00'6ET'T SIXEL g 153491U] 210439 340.d
5UONEIado WOJL ANUSAJY = S3|eS 31BN
"S3sUadxa U0 |043U0D 18112g pue Jeak [elaueuly
snonald o1 paledwod se Jead Jualind ui sajes Ul olley 140Jd 12N 6
95E30U| 03 3NP Jyodd Ul @sealsu) 0} anp Asessou| TT'896'8 0T'¥89'ZT S3|eS I8N
ESTEP'T %850 %6°8
ZEZS 86'EET’T XE| 210439 1140.d
09'SD9'E - €8°0¥T'8 = 86'8€9°Z - 90°€90°8 = SSBIE H2EAD
“sa|qedeqd pue sajqeaiaday jo juawageusw - §13sSY Juaun) = |euded Bupjiom
1anaq 01 anp jendea Suppiom pus Jeah ul d
uofaNpal pue sajes 1eaA snolaald 01 pasedwod se €7°SE9y 0°0LYS R T Ol3EY Jarouin] (eyded 39N 8
123l Jualind ul s9|eS Ul ISESIOUI 0] ANP S1 3SEIIU| co'el 6T e = -
728968 0T'¥89'2T Jead ay1 Bunnp sajes 1aN
. ¢ / (s3|gede
2/ [(sg'6¥L' + 19'80T) Z/[{6Lzes'T +15°01T) gl
+(6T'852°T + 8824 = W 4 o apeus] Buiso|] + s3jqeAed sped|
"0fje) ul aseadul 03 Sulpea| Jeah Jo pua BT'8ST'T + 88EY)] = +(s&6vL'T + 19°80T)] = SuluadQ) = sa|qeAed apes) afesany
3y} 1e umop auod sey anjea sjqeded syj asuay oljey Janouun| sa|qeied aped) s
pue sajeqhed anpsano ||e pied sey Auedwod ay | 92'085'7 88'SPE'Z sajgeded aped)| a8esany
r8y 95t 08'E
£L'€L9'9 526’8 S9Seyaund 18N
T/ (s3|qenaaay
2/ (06°801T'Y + 8%°065'F) = 2/ \L6°t2L'T + 06°80T'Y) = aped| SuisopD + s3]qeAI339Y aped]
BuiuadQ) = s3|qenladay aped) afelany
'uo23||00 Jaydly
01 2NP S3|QEBAI2I2] U] UCIIONPAL pue JeaA |etdueuly suonesado wouy anusAsY = SB|ES 13N | OlBY J2AcUIN] S3|GRAI3D3Y SpEed| 9
IU3LIND 3Y3 Ul 53|BS U| ISIRIIU| 0 INP S] ASLIU| :
69'6VE'Y LTBIV'E s3|qeAladay aped) adesany
LE6L 90T - TLE
CT'8968 oL'¥89'zL S9|ES I8N
(sye ur sy)

soljey [eloueuld Jo sisAjeuy /S

ZZOZ ‘YoJe ISTE Papua 122A 343 10} SJUSWDIE]S |BIDUBUL] O} PIYIBIIE SIION
9Z0T T - aund ‘nesoyg ‘DAIW “£ZI-L
pajiwi 23eAlld saueylainiAjod Adip




‘uanlB jJou aJ0313Y3 pue ajgeadde 30U SI 3NPaYIS LORIAWED JIMD)
40 10adsal U] uoiRWIOJUI A0QR 10jalay ] uejd jeulBio S 03 pasediod 1500 S papeadxa sey 40 uo1Ia|dos s31 10J NPIAA0 S TZ0ZE0 1€ uo se ssaifoud ui-om-jeyided Aue ou quawabeuew Jo uoluido ayy ug

| [ [ _ 3iqe311ddy 30N

| _
siead ¢ ueyy B sieak m-N_f sieald m.._”_ 1eaA T uey] ssa SIE2A ¢ uey3 2J0H | sieah m-.n_ sieaf 2-T| T ueyy ssa

U] pa3a|duod 8q o1 Ul pe3sjdwiod eq oL dIMmD
TZOZ'EQ'TIE Je sy ZZ0Z'E0'TE e sy

‘ueqd [edibiio s} 03 paiediliod 1500 Sj1 papoasxs Sey 10 3NpISA0 ST UoNS|dwod 3501 M '$531601d Ui-3iom-[e3ides 163 (q)

. - popuadsns
- = = - - Ajaesodway s3oefoad
Z2€'095 E SE'LT 00°£0% L6°SET
- - - - - |emaiys Je Buippng -
ssa1Bo4d Ui s303fold
SIRRA € UBY] 340 siesh £-7 SieaA z-1| JE3A T UBY] 5597 sieah £ ueyy aJop | Si29A £-7 S48RA Z-T  [1eaA T uewyy sse
Ie20) "TZ B TTE 0] O A9 35T JO PoLad € 10] dIMD Ul JUnGily 1BI0L | ZZ Y24eW TE O TZ0T 1Y IST 40 pousd © 10) dTMD Ul Junowy il

Snpayds Buibe g1md ‘ssaibold ui-yiom-jerides dog (&)

(b “oN 330N J8jas 0spy)
(dIMD) SS21b01d UI-}IOM-[ElIaR] 85

TZOT ‘Ydiep ISTE PapUa 124 3L} 10) SJUSLIDIEYS [BI2URLLY 0} PRYIERE SB10N

9TOTTY - dund ‘Mesoys 'DAIW ‘£L2T-1
pajiwi a3eAlld saueylaanijod Adig




68'62E'S

0T'628

€C'P8

59'66S

2L'08

8T'9SL'E

ZE'TOR'E

06'8LE #9PES 5919 6€°S01 PLOTY'T (e) |e303-gng

- - - - - pasiedwi
JpBID — 59[eAIRIRY

sped| paindsig [1a)

v ToR

= g = = = (njqnop
P3J3pISU0I 53|qenlBIaY

Ppes| paindsiq (A)

pood
PaJ3pisuod sa|genladsy
Bped | pandsiq (al)

ST'PIY

£TV8

28'v0¢E

E0'6L

68°Lir

9/.°0€ ET°LY 2 pasieduwn
JPaId — 59|qEeAIRI3Y

apes| pandsipun |

0T'678

01°6¢8

647459

06'8LE ECTET LOET ZE'TTL LTET Injaqnop

PaJ3pISUOI — 53|qeAIZIRY
@peJ| pandsipun (i)

£9°'9807

EB'V6T

S9'PS

STLEL'E

0Z'769°C

000 L6'T 84T ¥6'992 LYLOV'T poogd

paJspisuod - sa|jqenizaal
apeu| paindsipun (1)

1230,

sIEaA €
uey | sow

BEEYS
E-T

s1eBA

Fitel 8

1eaA T
- syjuow g

SUUoW g
eyl ssaq

uswAed

10 @3ep anp woly spouad Suimojjoy 1oy Buipueisinp

[eloL

sieak
eI

51eaA
£z

sieah g
ueyl 30N

FEET R
- Syjuow g

syjuow g
ueyy ssa

uawAied
10 318p anp woJys spotrad Suimojjo) 105 Suipuelsing

siejnaiped

120Z-e0-1€

CZ0T-E0-TE

(sueq ur unowy)

sa2ng paj|ig-2jqeAlsdal spes] (e)

(S ON 210N 43424 OS|y)
3npayss buiobe sajqealadral apell 65§

TZOT ‘yYode I1STE popua Jeah ayj o) sjuswsieis JelouBul{ 0] payselje SaJoN
9Z0TTH - BUNd ‘Lesoug ‘DaIi ‘£ZT-1
pa3jiwi 21BAlLld saueylainAjod Adi)




06'30T'p

£0°L2LT

S ON 210N Jad se |e1o)

TS0€S"T

P8HIZT

s19ap [npagnop
10} UDISIAOJ 15537

I 6ES'S 01’628

£C'¥8

€9'588

£0'28

6E'8LL'E

L8 THE'E

06'8LE v9'vES L1791 S0'ET 0T ISt (g)+(e) |e30L puess

25'60€ =

L6'S8Z

PE'T

444

S50Vt

- = 25'Z0T L9 9£°0€ (q) |=303-gns

z 5 = = - paJieduy
11pa1d — 59|qeAladay
aped] paindsiq (1a)

= Inygnop
PaJapIsSUOd $9]qEAISI3Y
2peJ | pandsiq (a)

z P = - - pood
paJaplsuol sa|qenaiay
2ped | paindsig (al)

09’

7 = = 09t = paJiedun
1IpaJd — s3|geAISIaYy
aped] payndsipun (1)

ST'L8T i

L6582

8T'T

75201

5 " 75201 000 = Injignop
palapIsuU0d — S3|qBAIDIDY
3peJ| psindsipun (1)

LTTT -

9070

e

EEE

- - - [0°E 9£°0E it
PR43pISU0D - S3|qEAIDIEL

ape:L paindsipun (1)

sieah g
|IE101 uBy | 240N

sJeaf
€T

sieah
1

FEETSS
- Syjuow g

syuow g
UByl 5537

JO 31ep anp woly spolad Fuimol|oy 1oy ulpueising

B30l

sieah g sieah sieah FIEYE syuow g
uey] 4o\ £-Z Z-I| - syjuow g ueyj ssa7

10 @)ep anp wiols spouad Buimojjo) oy Suipuelsing g

TZ0T-E0-TE

Z€202-€0-T€

(syxe ut Junowy)

sang pe|iqun-ajqealsdal apelL (q)

ZZ0T 'Yoiely ISTE papua Je3A ayj 10) Sjuswivlels [eloueuld 03 Payoel3e SRI0N
9Z0TTH - aund ‘Lesoyg ‘DIl ‘/ZT-1
pPeliwi ajeAlld saueylainAjod Adip




T¥'SET

6v'T0T

0S'S

vy

8798

LL082

61101

0s's

ET°ZY

2 S9°10T JeloL

paJiedwl paLd -Asuow
uoI1U313Y~ S3|qeAlDaY
aped| psandsig (1A)

[nyqnop
paJapIsuod -Asuow
U0I1Ua19Y-53|geAlzaay

apeJ| paindsiq (A}

pood

paispisuod -Asuouwl
UoI1U312Y-53|qBAIDIaY
2peJ| paindsiq (al)

96’9

GLe

LZv

£0°1¢

L0'TT

paJiedw] 3paJd — Asuow
uoIluR1aY-53|qBAIBIaY
apes| pawndsipun (1)

67 T0T

67'T0T

66'90T

6’101

0s's

InJagnop

paJapisuod Asuow
uonualay — $8)geAIaIay
aped| paindsipun (1)

96’971

SLe

E6°LE

8798

TLCTT

90°'T¢

= S9'T0T pood
paiapisuod -Asuow
uol1u313y — 53|qen|adal

apesL paindsipun (1)

|e10]

siesA ¢
uey] aloln

sieal

sieah
Fig B

JB3A T

i

syiuow g

syuow g
ueys ssa

1uswAed
10 33ep 3Np woJy spoiad 3uimo)|oy 404 Sulpueising

el01

siead ¢
UBy ] SI0|Al

sieak

£c

sieak

leaA T
- Syjuow g

syjuouw g
uey} ssa

Juawhed
40 91ep anp wioyy sporiad Suimoljoy Joy Suipuelsing

TZ02-£0-1¢

CT0Z-£0-TE

sie[naizied

(6 "ON 230N 1331 08]Y)
S}essy jua44n) (e)

3]qeAlanay Asuoly uonusley 09

ZTOT ‘yoielW ISTE Papua Jeal ay) 10 SJUSW]L]S [BIDUBULY OF PaydEe]Ie SI0N

9Z0TTH - 2und ‘Mesoyd ‘DAl '£ZT-1
Pl 9jeAlld saueyjadnijod Adip




LSE

L5

¥E'ST

- - - = ve'ST |e1ol

~ = - - - paJdiedw 31paJd -Asuow
uol1ua13y— S3|qeAladaYy
2pes] paindsiq (1a)

- - - - - [nyagnop
paJapisuold -Asuow
UDI1U319Y-53|qBAIRIaY
apedJ| paindsiq (a)

= - - - - poos
paJapisuod -Asuow
UoI1U31aY-S3|geAlDIY
9ped| paandsig (A1)

- - - - - paJiedwi Upals — Asuow
uoIUS1Y-S3|qRAISISY
3ped) pawndsipun ()

) - ) - i [nyagnop
palapisuod Asuow
uoIU31aY — S9|gBAIBIRY
9ped| paindsipun (1)

LS°T

£5°2

veStT

- - - - ve'sT e
pad4apisu0d -Asuow

uonualay — S3|qEA[=23l
apeJ pandsipun (1)

[B30L

siesh ¢
ueyy alo

sieah
€-C

sieah
L

Ie3A T

syjuow g

Syuow 9
ueyy ssa

40 31ep anp wouy sporsad Juimo||os 404 Suipuelsing

1eloL

sieafd ¢ saeal sieah ieah 1|syow g
UBY ] 2407 -7 Z-T| -syluow g| ueys ssa7

40 21ep anp wouy spouad Suimojjoy 1oy Suipuelsing

120¢-€0-T¢

CC0Z-20-1€ signaiyied

(syxe w Junowy)

(8 "oN ®10N 12431 0S]y)
$319Ssy jua4iind-uop (e)

CZ0Z ‘Yol 1STE papus Jeah ayj] Joy sjuswRje]s |elueUld 0} Paydelle Sa10N
920TT - aund ‘Mesoyg ‘DAl ‘LZT-L
PT "wr] 9jeAalld saueyiaanijod Adin




03D

ybuis despaey ;

Y84-QOH
leyseg gesses piy

~¢Y)

065Z£000 : NIQ

10303413

inpeyeg Aefueg

)

T TA

+2/£80900 : NIQ
10308110
Ad1) yseqnsg “aq

~————

MPANAA

pajuw aieAlld saueyjsunijod Adin

S40322.1Q JO pAeOg BUL JO Jjeyeg UQ pue 104

720Z/P0/57 318
aungd :a0e|d

TH9tt 10N diyssaquialy
Jsunied

336Y *N YS234I4S 'v¥D

MOSZZZT "oN uonensibsy
SIUBUNOJY paJaniey)

S3}e120SSY @ Aleg Y *Q 104
2]1Ep UDA3 j0 jiodaa payoelle 4no sad sy

86'66E TT00ET {2101
00°00T T€2'pLE - UYImoug - pund abes3iqiy 34dr1
00°00T 09£°95°€ - . HiMOoUD ~-pung abesygiy Aunb3 jenuapnid 10101
- = 00z 08L's pund IybIuiaA0 19S5
* = 0st TL0'E pund uogeing Hoys e wnubely 195
00's¢ TEET 66'6VT €ISy ymmoas - pung pinbn 1gs
< - ££°002 198 pund [emny eiput uoddiy
00°0S L9V Tr'T 66661 +81°95°s YImoldo -pund wus) Joys enjn 117
& - 66'61T ZIP Iy pung sbuiaes yeioy
- 2 66'66T PP9'LT pung. ybiuisap yeioy
= = 66'6YT £60°E pund pinbi yejoy
& - 66°6F1 S0z pung Wl uoys enjn D44qH
N = 66°66T 6vE'g yImoun - pund 3ybiuiang D4aH
00°SZ 958" 66°60T 265°€ Yimouo - pund pinbr D4aH
- = 66°66T EPLL pund afejuenpy Ainseal) sixy
2z - 66°66T 9158 pung pinbry sixy

1207 Yuew IstE [AD TzZozZ Yyatew st |AD
1e sy iesy sienaiied
(syet ur Junowy) (£T "ON 230N J2437 0S[y)
SJusWIsSaAuUl Jo sjielaq
- - = S s o = - - - SJaY10- sang paindsiqg (A1)
= z - - - - - - - 5 3NSIA - s3ng paindsiq (11
G8'6rL'T = €00 oL BO'L¥L'E 6LTTL L = vs'L LS} 69614 548410 (1)
19801 ~ = = 19’801 LS'0LE 5 - 7 LS0LL WS (1)
|2101 | s1eah £ ueyl sioy| sieah g-7 siead z-T| J1e3A T ueylssa |B10] [s1eah g uey) siop sieah ¢-z| siead z-r| JeshA T ueyyssaq

W0l} SpoIISd BUIMO|[0} 10} BUIPUBISIND w0y spouad SUIM0]|04 10§ SUIpUBISINg

T20Z-E0-1E ¢¢0Z-£0-TE siejnailed

(syeq ui Junowy)

(€7 "oN 230N ta4al os|y)
3npayas Buiabe sajqeAed apei]

9

19

ZZ0T ‘Y24ely ISTE papus Je3A oY) 10) Sjuswalels jepueUly 0] payde}ie sa)oN
92011t - 3und ‘esoyg ‘DaIW ‘£zT-L
PalwI] aj1eAlld saueylainijod Adi




